

GREEN LAKE COUNTY Land Conservation Department

571 County Road A Green Lake, WI 54941 Phone: 920-294-4051 FAX: 920-294-4056 Email: lcd@greenlakecountywi.gov

Land Conservation Committee Meeting Notice				
Date: October 12, 2023 Time: 9:00 AM County Board Room #0902, Green Lake County Government Center 571 County Rd A, Green Lake WI				
AMENDED AGENDA				
Committee Members Robert Schweder- Chairman Ken Bates- Vice-Chairman Bill Boutwell Nancy Hiestand Arnold Dahlke Wesley Eisenga – FSA Member Virtual attendance at meetings is optional. If technical difficulties arise, there may be instances	 Call to Order Certification of Open Meeting Law Pledge of Allegiance Approval of the September 14, 2023 Minutes Public Comments Wildlife Damage Program - Rebeca Bravo Discussion & Action on 5-year Cooperative Service Agreement (CSA) for the county Discussion & Action 2024 WDACP Annual Budget Discussion & Action to approve the 2023 Common Crop prices for county appraisals Discussion & Action to set a 90% harvest date for fall harvested crops Discussion & Action to participate in Venison Donation Program Appearances Hannah Niewoehner - Green Lake Watershed Update 8. Wake Boat Discussion Derek Kavanaugh Green Lake Sanitary District Green Lake Association Department Activities Report AlS Update Lake and River Report AlS Update Lake and River Report Staff Report AlS Update Lake and River Report Staff Court Gremittee Discussion Thure Meeting Date: November 9, 2023 at 9:00 AM Future Agenda items for action & discussion Adjourn This meeting will be conducted through in person attendance or audio/visual communication. Remote access can be obtained through the following link: 			
when remote access may be compromised. If there is a quorum attending in person, the meeting will proceed as scheduled.	Microsoft Teams Meeting Click here to join the meeting Meeting ID: 274 535 288 858 Passcode: fUVzfY Download Teams Join on the web Or call in (audio only) +1 920-515-0495,,789589973# United States, Green Bay Phone Conference ID: 789 589 973# Find a local number Reset PIN Please accept at your earliest convenience. Thank you! Kindly arrange to be present, if unable to do so, please notify our office. All line items are subject to any and all action by this committee, unless noted.			

Land Conservation Committee October 12, 2023 Monthly Staff Report

September 2023 Projects

- 1. Inspect open erosion control permits and review new permit applications for erosion control and storm-water management.
- 2. Deliver no-till drill to landowners throughout Green Lake County and calibrate for their specific planting needs.
- 3. Complete the design for a grassed waterway and grade stabilization structure in the Town of Green Lake.
- 4. Complete the design for a grassed waterway, subsurface drain, and underground outlet for a landowner in the Town of Green Lake.
- 5. Attend Lake Winnebago Tour of Green Lake County best management practices.
- 6. Run the Pollutant Load Estimation Tool (PLET) for Green Lake Sanitary District staff to obtain phosphorus loading effects of farming vs CRP.
- 7. Begin design for 2 grassed diversions in the Town of Kingston
- 8. Conduct Farmland Preservation field checks.
- 9. Create plan for sinkholes in the Town of Green Lake.
- 10. Attend Grassland 2.0 Academy.
- 11. Collect monthly water samples with Derek on White River Road.
- 12. Prepare for installation of waterway in Town of Green Lake.
- 13. Continue design of a waste storage facility and waste transfer in the Town of Princeton.

October 2023 Project Focus

- 1. Continue preparing for installation of waterway in Town of Green Lake.
- 2. Conduct annual buffer inspections for buffer program.
- 3. Contact farmers that are potential grazers.
- 4. Continue creating plan for sinkholes in the Town of Green Lake.
- 5. Continue to attend relevant trainings.
- 6. Continue collecting monthly stream samples.
- 7. Continue conducting Farmland Preservation field checks.

Lake and River Report

<u>**Puckaway**</u> – Finalizing the aquatic invasive species management plan. Meet with 3 landowners to review shoreline erosion/plant issues.

Twin Lakes - Submitted Pre-Application for 2024 Lake Planning Grant

Spring Lake – No Update

<u>Little Green</u> – Met with Adaptive Management committee (monthly) to coordinate 2024-2029 Lake Management Plan update. Submitted Pre-Application for 2024 Lake Planning Grant

<u>Green Lake</u> – Stream Survey and Restoration Meeting. Internal Phosphorus Loading Meeting with Eutrophix. Meet with 2 landowners to review stormwater runoff issues, and 2 for shoreland erosion issues. Attended LCC meeting to present information on Wake Boats.

Grand Lake – Submitted Pre-Application for 2024 Lake Planning Grant

Other

- Collected monthly water samples and stream measurements on White Creek.
- Hosted annual stream monitoring training for Green Lake High School (Puchyan, Dakin, Powell's, Mitchell's Glen, White)
- Recreational Impacts/Lake Carry Capacity Meeting with Green Fire and Last Wilderness Alliance.
- Hosted Lake Winnebago Area Land and Water Annual Meeting and Field Tour (Boat Wash Station, Hammer's Trail Shoreline Restoration, Capture-P system)
- Reviewed wetland violation with DNR Warden to develop restoration plans.



LAND CONSERVATION COMMITTEE September 14, 2023 - MINUTES

The meeting of the Green Lake County Land Conservation Committee was called to order by Robert Schweder, Committee Chairman, at 9:00AM on September 14, 2023 in the County Board Room #0902 of the Green Lake County Government Center in Green Lake, WI. The requirements of the open meeting law were certified as being met. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Present: Excused: Robert Schweder Bill Boutwell Ken Bates Arnold Dahlke Nancy Hiestand Staff Present: Todd Morris Heidi Weishaar

Others Present: Taylor Haag Derek Kavanaugh Jeffrey Mann Cate Wylie Kenneth Stephani Hannah Niewoehner

MINUTES

Motion/second (*Boutwell/Dahlke*) to approve and file the August 10, 2023 meeting minutes Motion carried.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

APPEARANCES

- Federal Agencies
 None
- Hannah Niewoehner, Watershed Coordinator, provided a written update on the projects within the Green Lake Watershed that she is working on as well as updates from the Green Lake Sanitary District. See report attached.
- Derek Kavanaugh & GLA Wake Boat Discussion regarding shoreline erosion Board discussed wake boat concerns and how to address this moving forward. Chairman Schweder would like the LCC to look at and address this issue further.

DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORT

- Staff Report Written report was reviewed.
- AIS Update Written report was reviewed from Chris Hamerla, Regional Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Coordinator.
- Lake and River Report Written report was reviewed, and Robert Schweder gave an update on the Lake Puckaway Annual Meeting stating that the District is going to borrow \$400,000 for a weed cutter and herbicide application.

ACT 32 UPDATE

The passage of Act 32 removes the requirement in Chap. 92 to appoint an FSA member to the county LCC and replaces it with a requirement to appoint a person who is engaged in an agricultural use.

LCC SURVEY - WI LAND & WATER

Morris simply requested that the committee members complete the survey that was emailed to them from WI Land & Water to help them update their strategic planning goals.

CLEAN SWEEP SUMMARY

Morris reported another successful Clean Sweep on August 11th and mentioned the number of participants and the tires, gallons of oil/antifreeze and pounds of e-waste collected.

GREAT LAKES RESTORATION INITIATIVE (GLRI) GRANT UPDATE

Morris gave an update on the grant status and the scope of work the LCD staff and Sanitary District Watershed Outreach Coordinator will be focusing on.

LWLWCA MEETING/TOUR

Morris discussed the upcoming meeting and reminded LCC members to register if attending.

COMMMITTEE DISCUSSION

- Future Meeting Date: September 14, 2023 at 9:00 AM
- Future Agenda items for action & discussion

ADJOURN

Meeting adjourned at <u>9:53 AM</u>

Respectfully submitted,

Heidi Weishaar Recorder

GREEN LAKE COUNTY September AIS Highlights 2023

2024 LMPN AIS funding planning

2023 LMPN wrap up and AIS reporting

Press release for waterfowl hunter AIS prevention.



WI trappers Convention, AIS booth, 130 people contacted.

Boatwash meeting with Green Lk Assoc, Sanitary district and county staff.



VISIT OUR WEBSITE TO LEARN MORE: GOLDSANDSRCD.ORG

Conservation That Works!

COOPERATIVE SERVICE AGREEMENT between GREEN LAKE County and WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (WDNR) and UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE (APHIS) WILDLIFE SERVICES (WS)

ARTICLE 1 – PURPOSE

The purpose of this Cooperative Service Agreement is to cooperate in a County/State/Federal black bear, white-tailed deer, elk, cougar, Canada goose, wild turkey and Sandhill crane damage management program. The primary objective is to provide commercial agricultural producers the necessary technical and/or operational assistance in identifying, abating, managing, and assessing damage with the species listed.

ARTICLE 2 – AUTHORITY

APHIS-WS has statutory authority under the Acts of March 2, 1931, 46 Stat. 1468-69, 7 U.S.C. §§ 8351-8352, as amended, and December 22, 1987, Public Law No. 100-202, § 101(k), 101 Stat. 1329-331, 7 U.S.C. § 8353, to cooperate with States, local jurisdictions, individuals, public and private agencies, organizations, and institutions while conducting a program of wildlife services involving mammal and bird species that are reservoirs for zoonotic diseases, or animal species that are injurious and/or a nuisance to, among other things, agriculture, horticulture, forestry, animal husbandry, wildlife, and human health and safety.

ARTICLE 3 - MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The cooperating parties mutually understand and agree to/that:

- 1. APHIS-WS shall perform services set forth in the Work Plan, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof. The parties may mutually agree in writing, at any time during the term of this agreement, to amend, modify, add or delete services from the Work Plan.
- 2. The Cooperator certifies that APHIS-WS has advised the Cooperator there may be private sector service providers available to provide wildlife damage management (WDM) services that the Cooperator is seeking from APHIS-WS.
- 3. All equipment with a purchase price of \$5,000 or more per unit, purchased directly with funds from the cooperator for use on this project shall be subject to disposal according to

APHIS policy, and shall be specifically listed in the attached work plan and financial plan. Property title/disposal shall be determined when this project (including all continuations and revisions of this agreement) terminates, or when the equipment is otherwise directed to other projects, whichever comes first. If the equipment is sold prior to the project end, the proceeds should be allocated according to APHIS policy. Continuations and revisions to this agreement shall list any equipment with a purchase price of \$5,000 or more per unit, carried over from a purchase directly with funds from the cooperator for use on this project. All other equipment purchased for the program is and will remain the property of APHIS-WS.

4. The cooperating parties agree to coordinate with each other before responding to media requests on work associated with this project.

ARTICLE 4 - COOPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES

The County (Cooperator) agrees:

1. To designate the following as the authorized representative who shall be responsible for collaboratively administering the activities conducted in this agreement:

County Cooperator Representative: Todd Morris County Conservationist 571 County Rd. A Green Lake, WI 54941 920-294-4051 TMorris@greenlakecountywi.gov

WDNR Representative: Brad Koele Wildlife Damage Specialist WDNR Bureau of Wildlife Management 8770 Hwy J Woodruff, WI 54568 608-576-3914 Bradley.Koele@wisconsin.gov

- 2. To authorize APHIS-WS to conduct direct control activities and/or technical assistance to reduce commercial agricultural damage associated to wildlife damage caused by the species identified in the Work Plan. Activities are defined in the Work Plan. APHIS-WS will be considered an invitee on the lands controlled by Wildlife Damage Abatement and Claims Program (WDACP) enrollees. These program enrollees will be required to exercise reasonable care to warn APHIS-WS as to dangerous conditions or activities in the project areas.
- 3. To reimburse APHIS-WS for costs, not to exceed the annually approved amount specified in the Financial Plan. If costs are projected to exceed the amount reflected in the Financial

Plan, the agreement with amended Work Plan and Financial Plan shall be formally revised and signed by all parties before services resulting in additional costs are performed. The Cooperator agrees to pay all costs of services submitted via an invoice from APHIS-WS within 30 days of the date of the submitted invoice(s). Late payments are subject to interest, penalties, and administrative charges and costs as set forth under the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996.

- 4. To provide a Tax Identification Number or Social Security Number in compliance with the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996.
- 5. As a condition of this agreement, the Cooperator ensures and certifies that it is not currently debarred or suspended and is free of delinquent Federal debt.
- 6. To designate APHIS-WS the County authorized individual whose responsibility shall be coordination and administration of WDACP activities conducted pursuant to this Agreement.
- 7. To notify APHIS-WS verbally or in writing as far in advance as practical of the date and time of any proposed meeting related to the program.
- 8. The Cooperator acknowledges that APHIS-WS shall be responsible for administration of APHIS-WS activities and supervision of APHIS-WS personnel. APHIS-WS will recognize the County as the lead cooperator in this Agreement and the WDNR for providing overall program oversight. APHIS-WS will coordinate activities with the County and WDNR.
- 9. To obtain the appropriate permits for removal activities for species listed in the Work Plan.
- 10. The Cooperator will not be connected to the USDA APHIS computer network(s).

ARTICLE 5 – APHIS-WS RESPONSIBILITIES

APHIS-WS Agrees:

1. To designate the following as the APHIS-WS authorized representative who shall be responsible for collaboratively administering the activities conducted in this agreement:

Daniel Hirchert WI State Director USDA, APHIS, WS 732 Lois Drive Sun Prairie, WI 53590 608-837-2727 Daniel.L.Hirchert@usda.gov

- 2. To conduct activities at sites designated by Cooperator as described in the Work Plan, Plan of Administration, and Financial Plans (Attachments A-C). APHIS-WS will provide qualified personnel and other resources necessary to implement the approved WDM activities delineated in the Work Plan, Plan of Administration, and Financial Plan of this agreement.
- 3. Designate to the County and WDNR the authorized APHIS-WS employee who shall be responsible for the joint administration of the activities conducted pursuant to this Agreement. APHIS-WS employees' rights will be governed by applicable Federal personnel laws, rules, and regulations. County employees' rights will be governed by County ordinances, Personnel Policy, and Union contracts where applicable.
 - a. APHIS-WS will designate the District Supervisor and/or Assistant District Supervisor as the authorized representative who will provide immediate direction and guidance to personnel in performing activities outlined in this Agreement, to include:
 - i. adequate numbers of qualified personnel to initiate and conduct the wildlife damage management activities outlined in the Work Plan of this Agreement.
 - ii. training, technical supervision, and coordination of activities as outlined in the Work Plan of this Agreement.
 - iii. to arrange for office space and provide equipment and other miscellaneous needs for personnel assigned to this program as outlined in the Work Plan of this Agreement.
- 4. That the performance of wildlife damage management actions by APHIS-WS under this agreement is contingent upon a determination by APHIS-WS that such actions are in compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act, Endangered Species Act, and any other applicable federal statutes. APHIS-WS will not make a final decision to conduct requested wildlife damage management actions until it has made the determination of such compliance.
- 5. To invoice the County quarterly for actual costs incurred by APHIS-WS during the performance of services agreed upon and specified in the Work Plan. Authorized auditing representatives of the County shall be accorded reasonable opportunity to inspect the accounts and records of APHIS-WS pertaining to such claims for reimbursement to the extent permitted by Federal law and regulations. APHIS-WS agrees to handle cooperative finances and budgeting as outlined in the Financial Plan of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6 – CONTINGENCY STATEMENT

This agreement is contingent upon the passage by Congress of an appropriation from which expenditures may be legally met and shall not obligate APHIS-WS upon failure of Congress to so appropriate. This agreement may also be reduced or terminated if Congress only provides APHIS-WS funds for a finite period under a Continuing Resolution.

ARTICLE 7 – NON-EXCLUSIVE SERVICE CLAUSE

Nothing in this agreement shall prevent APHIS-WS from entering into separate agreements with any other organization or individual for the purpose of providing wildlife damage management services exclusive of those provided for under this agreement.

ARTICLE 8 – CONGRESSIONAL RESTRICTIONS

Pursuant to Section 22, Title 41, United States Code, no member of or delegate to Congress shall be admitted to any share or part of this agreement or to any benefit to arise therefrom.

ARTICLE 9 – LAWS AND REGULATIONS

This agreement is not a procurement contract (31 U.S.C. 6303), nor is it considered a grant (31 U.S.C. 6304). In this agreement, APHIS-WS provides goods or services on a cost recovery basis to nonfederal recipients, in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations and policies.

ARTICLE 10 – LIABILITY

APHIS-WS assumes no liability for any actions or activities conducted under this agreement except to the extent that recourse or remedies are provided by Congress under the Federal Tort Claims Act (28 U.S.C. 1346(b), 2401(b), and 2671-2680).

ARTICLE 11 – NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE

The United States Department of Agriculture prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.

ARTICLE 12 - DURATION, REVISIONS, EXTENSIONS, AND TERMINATIONS

This agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2024 and shall continue through December 31, 2028. This Cooperative Service Agreement may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties in writing. The Cooperator must submit a written request to extend the end date at least 10 days prior to expiration of the agreement. Also, this agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual agreement of the parties in writing, or by one party provided that party notifies the other in writing at least 120 days prior to effecting such action. Further, in the event the Cooperator does not provide necessary funds, APHIS-WS is relieved of the obligation to provide services under this agreement.

In accordance with the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, the Department of Treasury requires a **Taxpayer Identification Number** for individuals or businesses conducting business with the agency.

County Tax ID No.: WDNR Tax ID No.: 396006436 APHIS-WS's Tax ID: 41-0696271

County:

BY: _____

Date

Name/ Title: Address:

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources:

BY: Eric Lobner, Bureau Director Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 101 S. Webster Street Madison, WI 53707-7921

Date

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE WILDLIFE SERVICES

BY: _____ Daniel Hirchert, State Director USDA, APHIS, WS 732 Lois Dr. Sun Prairie, WI 53590

Date

BY: Keith Wehner, Eastern Region Director USDA, APHIS, WS 920 Main Campus Dr, Suite 200 Raleigh, NC 27606

Date

ATTACHMENT A WORK PLAN

In accordance with the Cooperative Service Agreement between the County, WDNR and the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS), Wildlife Services (WS), this Work Plan sets forth the objectives, activities and budget of this project during the period of this agreement.

Introduction

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) is authorized to protect American agriculture and other resources from damage associated with wildlife. Wildlife Services activities are conducted in cooperation with other Federal, State, and local agencies, private organizations and individuals.

The APHIS-WS program uses an Integrated Wildlife Damage Management (IWDM) approach (sometimes referred to as IPM or "Integrated Pest Management") in which a series of methods may be used or recommended to reduce wildlife damage. These methods include the alteration of cultural practices as well as habitat and behavioral modification to prevent damage. However, controlling wildlife damage may require that the offending animal(s) are killed or that the populations of the offending species be reduced.

Purpose

Objectives and need for assistance: Agricultural producers need professional wildlife damage management assistance in identifying, abating, and assessing black bear, white-tailed deer, elk, cougar, Canada goose, wild turkey, and sandhill cranes damage. APHIS-WS's objective will be to provide that assistance.

Expected results or benefits: The benefits to be derived from a cooperative black bear, whitetailed deer, elk, cougar, Canada goose, wild turkey, and Sandhill cranes management program include timely availability of the necessary wildlife damage management expertise, technical assistance, loans of necessary abatement equipment, and crop/livestock damage appraisal services for producers experiencing conflicts with one of more of these species. The intended result will be wildlife damage relief.

Planned APHIS-WS Activities

 Approach: The proposed wildlife damage management program will be comprised of education, extension, technical assistance, and operational efforts. When complaints occur, an evaluation of the situation will be made to determine what appropriate action should be taken. APHIS-WS will consider all applicable methods and combinations of techniques available to alleviate the conflict. APHIS-WS will recommend an integrated wildlife damage management approach which may consist of elements such as: changes in farming or livestock practices, loan of damage abatement equipment, installation of costshared permanent fences, WDNR issued shooting permits, and crop damage compensation (WDNR funded). Specific abatement measures to be considered are outlined in Attachment B.

- 2. Resources Required: Overall supervision and program direction will be provided by the APHIS-WS State Director. Immediate supervision and program direction will be provided by the APHIS-WS District Supervisor and/or Assistant District Supervisor. All County Wildlife Damage Abatement and Claims Program (WDACP) funds will be managed as an integral part of the APHIS-WS districts WDACP budget. Specific financial details are outlined in Financial Plan.
- 3. Procurement: Purchase of supplies, equipment, and miscellaneous needs including salaries will be made by APHIS-WS as outlined in the Financial Plan. All WDACP expenditures will be processed through APHIS-WS financial administrative systems (FMMI) and charged to the County WDACP account as outlined in the APHIS-WS District WDACP budget.
- 4. Stipulations and Restrictions: APHIS-WS activities under this cooperative effort will be limited to the State of Wisconsin. Techniques will be environmentally sound, safe, and effective. Wildlife damage management activities will be performed within the policy guidelines of APHIS-WS, the State of Wisconsin, and the County in compliance with applicable State and Federal regulations.
- 5. Reports: Upon request, APHIS-WS will provide an annual report to the County on APHIS-WS activities conducted under this Cooperative Agreement.

Effective Dates

This agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2024 and continue through December 31, 2028 unless otherwise modified or terminated as described in ARTICLE 12.

ATTACHMENT B WISCONSIN WILDLIFE DAMAGE ABATEMENT & CLAIMS PROGRAM (WDACP) PLAN OF ADMINISTRATION GREEN LAKE COUNTY

As confirmed in the County Board of Supervisor's Resolution No. 83-86, the County request to participate in the Wildlife Damage Abatement and Claims Program (WDACP), established under s. 29.889, Stats., and s. NR 12 Wis. Adm. Code. This Plan of Administration (Plan) outlines the relationships and duties of the County, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR), and the United States Department of Agriculture, Animal Plant Health Inspection Services, Wildlife Services (APHIS-WS), herein called the parties. By submission of this Plan, the County agrees to fully comply with s. 29.889, Stats., s. NR 12, Wis. Adm. Code and the Wisconsin WDACP Technical and Field Manuals which are made a part of this Plan by reference.

- 1. Definitions: For the purposes of this Plan, the Parties accept the definitions found in s. 29.889(1) Stats. And s. NR 12.31 WI. Adm. Code. In addition, the Parties agree that:
 - a. "Improperly filed claim" means any wildlife damage claim received by WDNR which does not comply fully with all eligibility requirements of s. 29.889, Stats., s. NR. 12 Wis. Adm. Code or this Plan or procedures described in the WDACP Technical or Field Manual.
 - b. "Permanent fence contract" means any permanent fence contract written in accordance with the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual and designed to remain effective for a minimum of 15 years.
- 2. Level of Participation: The County agrees to administer the full WDACP.
- 3. Eligible Species: The County agrees to administer the WDACP with respect to the following wild animals: bear, cougar, white-tailed deer, elk, Canada goose, wild turkey, and Sandhill cranes * (*only become eligible for program benefits when a hunting season in Wisconsin has been established).
- 4. Eligible Crops: The County agrees to provide WDACP services with respect to the following: damage to commercial seedlings or crops growing on agricultural lands, damage to crops that have been harvested for sale or further use but have not been removed from the agricultural land, damage to orchard trees or nursery stock, damage to livestock, or damage to apiaries.
- 5. Delegation of Responsibility:
 - a. The County, through an established committee or through a county designee shall provide Administration of the County WDACP pursuant to s. 29.889, Stats., s. NR 12, Wis. Adm. Code including approval of: annual budget requests, permanent fence contracts, crop prices, properly filed wildlife damage claims, shooting permit compliance waivers, and enrollee appeals, (if any).

- b. APHIS-WS shall provide the field management of the County WDACP, including hiring, training, and supervising staff, providing program services, records management, purchasing, and equipment inventory.
- 6. Budgeting:
 - a. APHIS-WS agrees to:
 - i. Prepare a WDACP budget proposal for the following calendar year for County review and approval by October 31 (or as negotiated).
 - ii. Not bind the County to the expenditures of funds exceeding their total County WDACP budget.
 - iii. Keep administrative costs to a minimum, by billing WDACP expenses to each County on a quarterly basis.
 - b. The County agrees to:
 - i. Provide an annual budget request to WDNR by November 1 (or as negotiated) for the following calendar year. All budget requests will include cost estimates for administration, abatement, wildlife damage claims, and an estimated number of claimants.
 - ii. Prepare quarterly (or as negotiated) reimbursement request to WDNR for eligible WDACP expenditures.
 - iii. Not bind WDNR for expenditures beyond the approved County Plan of Administration. The County may request additional funding by written amendment. It is understood that additional funding is not guaranteed and is subject to fund availability.
 - iv. Unless otherwise agreed upon, submit advance abatement and administrative fund requests that are compliant with s. 29.889 and NR 12, after submitting a final reimbursement request for previous year for which WDACP participation was approved.
 - c. WDNR Agrees to:
 - i. Review and approve, amend, or deny the annual budget request in accordance with s. 29.889, Stats., s. NR 12.32, Wis. Adm. Code, and advance funds under s. NR 12.34 (unless otherwise agreed upon), Wis. Adm. Code within 30 days of department approval of the annual budget estimate.
 - ii. Review and approve, amend, or deny reimbursement requests in accordance with s. NR 12.34 and s. NR 12.35, Wis. Adm. Codes.

- iii. Review and act on properly filed wildlife damage claim requests no later than June 1 following the calendar year in which damage occurred.
- iv. If eligible wildlife damage claims are submitted late by the County, WDNR may accept and process the claims if funds are available, and the payment will not adversely affect claimants for the proceeding calendar year claim payments.
- v. If statewide approved wildlife damage claims exceed available funds, claims shall be paid on a prorated basis as established in s. NR 12.37 (3) Wis. Adm. Code.
- d. The Parties mutually recognize and agree:
 - i. WDNR may not bind the State of Wisconsin to pay costs beyond the amount appropriated for the WDACP.
 - ii. WDNR may defer until after July 1, the payment of County reimbursement requests beyond the initial 25% funds advancement.
 - iii. The County and WDNR shall not restrict APHIS-WS to line items estimates in the WDACP budget if total expenditures, per expense category of abatement or administration, do not exceed the total budgeted amount approved by the County and WDNR.
 - iv. The County WDACP budget may be spent in its entirety. Any unspent funds will remain with the WDNR WDACP program.
 - v. Supplies, materials, and equipment will be purchased with WDACP funds. If this Agreement is terminated by any of the Parties, items purchased will be transferred within the WDACP for use or proceeds of items shall remain with the WDACP or returned for reimbursement if possible.
 - vi. WDNR will not reimburse the cost of abatement measures unless those measures were prescribed and implemented according to the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual.
 - wDNR will not make payment for any wildlife damage claim which does not comply with all eligible requirements of s. 29.889, Stats., s. NR 12, Wis. Adm. Code, or this Plan of Administration.
- 7. Recordkeeping:
 - a. APHIS-WS and the County agree to:
 - i. Maintain record keeping practices and procedures that confirm to accounting practices directed by the WDNR and in compliance with s. NR 12, Wis. Adm. Code.

- ii. Make all records and files relating to the WDACP available to the other Parties, upon request.
- iii. Send copies of any WDACP documentation to the other Parties, upon request.
- iv. Use WDNR authorized databases and forms for billing and reporting.
- b. APHIS-WS agrees to: Maintain separate enrollee files and keep records of all abatement recommendations, appraisals, and all WDACP related interactions with each enrollee.
- c. The County agrees to: Direct all billings to WDNR, Wildlife Damage Specialist
- d. WDNR may: Conduct periodic audits of County record keeping procedures and prepare a written report to the County.
- e. The Parties recognize and agree: All WDACP records are subject to the Wisconsin Open Records Law s.16.61, Stats. Any WDACP records requested will be provided by the County, WDNR, and/or APHIS-WS, as applicable.
- 8. Abatement Measures:
 - a. The parties mutually recognize and agree that:
 - i. WDNR shall maintain web pages detailing the WDACP and describing how services may be requested.
 - ii. All enrollees shall be required to have a signed enrollment form on file to meet the hunting requirements in s. 29.889 (7m), Stats., s. NR 12.36, Wis. Adm. Code prior to receiving WDACP assistance.
 - iii. All abatement measures recommended to alleviate wildlife damage shall conform to the procedures and priorities found in the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual and will be accepted by the County as complete and appropriate "recommended abatement". Other abatement measures may be used if approved in advance, in writing, by WDNR.
 - iv. In the event equipment loaned by APHIS-WS to an enrollee is damaged beyond normal wear and tear, the enrollee/owner shall be billed for parts and labor to repair the damaged equipment, or if repair costs exceed the value of the equipment, the enrollee will be billed for the replacement of the equipment. APHIS-WS agrees to invoice the enrollee for these costs through a separate Cooperative Service Agreement and deposit the proceeds in the County's WDACP account. If the enrollee refuses to pay:
 - 1. The County shall direct APHIS-WS to refuse abatement services until payment is made (consequently the enrollee would be ineligible for a wildlife damage claim) or

- 2. The County shall take a reasonable legal action to recover the loss of WDACP materials and/or equipment and deposit the proceeds in the County's WDACP account.
- v. Permanent fences for white-tailed deer or elk abatement shall only be recommended subject to the priorities and conditions set forth in the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual or as directed by WDNR.
 - 1. A WDACP enrollee for which a permanent fence has been recommended and approved will be required to agree to the design of the fence in advance of letting the project for bid. The enrollee will be responsible for all materials and/or installation costs in excess of the low bid amount if the enrollee requests changes in the fence design subsequent to letting the bids for said fence.
 - 2. A permanent fence contract shall be signed by the enrollee/landowner, the County, WDNR, and APHIS-WS. This contract shall be registered with the appropriate County Register of Deeds.
 - 3. All aspects of permanent fencing projects shall comply with requirements in the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual.
 - 4. All permanent fences must be approved by the County and approved in writing by the WDNR prior to soliciting and awarding bids for materials and construction of the fence.
 - 5. All permanent fences that exceed the specification found in the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual must have prior written approval from WDNR.
 - 6. The County will pay the WDACP's 75% obligation for permanent high-tensile woven wire projects approved by the WDNR, when APHIS-WS has determined that the WDACP requirements for materials and construction have been met.
 - 7. An initial fence inspection will be completed by APHIS-WS and all information will be entered into the WDNR database including a copy of the registered permanent fence contract.
 - 8. APHIS-WS shall conduct inspections a minimum of once annually of all permanent fences cost-shared through the WDACP to ensure fence contract compliance. All inspection records will be annually recorded in the WDACP database.
 - 9. A penalty fee (*fee to be determined*) may be charged to the enrollee if the fence has been awarded and the enrollee withdraws or elects to NOT build the approved fence.

- 10. Enrollees will be denied additional full program WDACP assistance if a permanent fence has been recommended as the primary abatement and the enrollee refuses the fence. For as long as a permanent fence is the primary recommended abatement for that enrollee full WDACP program assistance (any abatement and/or claims) will be denied in all subsequent years until a fence is erected. NOTE: Enrollee may remain eligible for Act 82 permits, as long as all conditions for Act 82 enrollment have been met.
- 11. The contractor shall be liable for the payment of penalties to the WDACP accruing in the amount described in the permanent fence Bid Request, in the event the Contractor fails to meet the delivery and/or installation schedules as specified. Penalties, if applicable, shall be deducted from the payment that is owed to the contractor under the terms of the Bid and its associated bid conditions.
- 12. APHIS-WS will prepare all Satisfaction of Contract paperwork and record this paperwork with the appropriate county Register of Deeds, when the fence has reached the end of its 15-year term and/or when the contract has been otherwise satisfied (i.e., enrollee has provided payment to end the contract prior to the end of the 15-year term according to the pay back clause of the clause of the register permanent fence contract).
- vi. Enrollees shall be encouraged to integrate sound conservation practices with their normal agricultural practices.
- vii. The County, in accordance with s. NR 12.35(4) Wis. Adm. Code will not administer abatement measures to persons not cooperating with County personnel or the County's agents responsible for administering the County's WDACP. Abusive language, behavior, threats of violence, or otherwise will be considered a failure on the part of the enrollee to cooperate. This condition of administration will be provided by the County or its agent, in writing to program enrollees.
- b. WDNR and APHIS-WS agree to: Provide current information, as available, on the effectiveness of the above abatement measures and/or changes to the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual.
- 9. Wildlife Damage Claims:
 - a. APHIS-WS agrees to:
 - i. Advise the County WDACP enrollees in writing procedures and requirements for submitting a wildlife damage claim, and all other WDACP eligibility requirements through the use of the current program Farmers Fact sheet and/or other informational materials.

- ii. Require that potential claimants specify the location of damage, crop(s) being damaged, species of wildlife causing damage, and the date damage first occurred with a written, telephone, or personal consultation.
- iii. Require that enrollees have signed enrollment form(s) (WDNR form) on file to meet the hunting requirements in s. 29.889 (7M), Stats. And s. NR 12.36(2) Wis. Adm. Code.
- iv. Inspect reported damage to verify eligibility requirement and recommend abatement measures.
- v. Determine the amount of huntable land and the applicable number of hunters for each enrollee in accordance with s. NR 12.31(4) or (4e), Wis Adm. Code, notify each enrollee of the requirement to allow open public hunting or managed hunting access (at least 2 hunters per 40 acres of land suitable for hunting). Land suitable for hunting all eligible species other than deer and elk shall be determined in a manner consistent with s. NR 12.31(4e) Wis. Adm. Code. Participants who only receive a deer shooting permit and waive any eligibility to receive a wildlife damage claim payment or other WDACP program assistance, are exempt from the public hunting requirement (Act 82 enrollment), (s. NR 12.36 (1m) Wis. Adm. Code). Participants who receive abatement only on leased land properties for bear damages to apiaries are exempt from the public hunting requirements as defined in s. 29.889 (7m), Stats.
- vi. Prepare maps of properties enrolled in the WDACP that are required to open to the public for hunting the species causing damage. Maps must detail the acres enrolled, Township, Range, Section number(s), identifying owned and leased land properties enrolled, and the enrollee's contract information. APHIS-WS will obtain approval from the enrollee to assure that the map includes complete and accurate information regarding all properties enrolled. APHIS-WS staff will enter a copy of the map into the WDNR database, per the WDNR mapping guidelines.
- vii. Notify WDACP enrollees that any site will be ineligible if they fail to:
 - 1. Control hunting access on all contiguous land under the same ownership and control, except in situations involving apiaries on land not controlled by the enrollee as defined in s. 29.889 (7m), Stats.
 - 2. Allow public hunting for the species causing damage (two options available)
 - a. Open public hunting (OPH)
 - b. Managed Hunting Access (MHA) the presence of 2 hunters per 40 acres of land suitable for hunting.

- 3. Sign the appropriate enrollment form(s) including obtaining landowner consent for enrollment of leased properties in a timely manner.
- 4. File a wildlife damage complaint with APHIS-WS within 14 days of first damage each year.
- 5. Follow APHIS-WS's recommended abatement according to the WDACP Technical Manual list of approved methods.
- 6. Request an appraisal for each crop and/or cutting from APHIS-WS orally or in writing at least 10 days prior to the harvest of crops, and delay harvest of said crops for a period of up to 10 days to allow APHIS-WS time to appraise the unharvested crops, or until the appraisal is completed.
- 7. Notify APHIS-WS if they charge any fees for hunting or hunting access, or any other activity that includes hunting for the species causing the damage.
- viii. Inspect the crop or individual fields identified by the enrollee, prior to harvest, and access the eligible wildlife damage and prepare a wildlife damage claim.
 - ix. Retain the claim until the end of the calendar year or end of the state harvest season for the enrolled species, whichever is later, to determine the enrollee's compliance with the WDACP requirements.
 - x. Establish, as described below, uniform unit prices for eligible crops and calculated the value of the eligible wildlife damage claims (see Mutual Agreement between all parties 4b).
 - xi. Ensure that crop damage resulting from improper crop management, compromised growing conditions and weather, or wildlife other that the covered species, is not included in the official crop damage appraisals conducted by APHIS-WS prior to preparation of the enrollee's official wildlife damage claim.
- xii. Summarize and prepare the necessary WDNR forms for all wildlife damage claims for review by the County prior to the succeeding March 1st. Upon approval by the County, claims will be submitted to the WDNR, unless otherwise negotiated by the succeeding March 1st.
- xiii. Notify, in writing, any enrollee whose wildlife damage claim has been rejected and provided the reason for the rejection, as well as the appropriate appeal procedures.
- b. The County agrees to:

- i. Review and approve all properly filed wildlife damage claims.
- ii. Establish crop prices in accordance with the WDACP Technical Manual or approve prices as recommended by APHIS-WS.
- iii. Deny all wildlife damage claims for a crop site where an invalid enrollment form has been signed by the enrollee and filed with APHIS-WS
- iv. Deny all wildlife damage claims where APHIS-WS did not receive a complaint within 14 days of first damage.
- v. Deny all wildlife damage claims for crop sites where APHIS-WS abatement recommendations were not followed.
- vi. Deny all wildlife damage claims for crops that were harvested before an appraisal request was made to APHIS-WS or before an appraisal was completed (within a 10-day period from notification of harvest).
- vii. Deny all wildlife damage claims on row crops for damage occurring to these crops during a particular growing season after 90 percent of the County's harvest for this crop has been completed, as required by s. NR 12.37(1)(c), Wis. Adm. Code. The County may consult with the local FSA and UW extension offices for assistance in making the 90 percent determination (if desired).
- viii. Deny all wildlife damage claims if an enrollee is not compliant with the prescribed harvest objective if issued a deer damage shooting permit, and the consulting group consisting of the County, the damage specialist and WDNR, does not collectively recommend an exemption to the harvest objective requirement.
 - ix. The County shall take reasonable legal action to recover claim payments made on the basis of fraudulent or negligent claims or statements.
- c. WDNR agrees to: Accept the amount of wildlife damage for all properly filed wildlife damage claims approved by the County as final for purposes of review.
- d. It is mutually agreed by the County, APHIS-WS, and WDNR that:
 - i. Damage assessment for compensation will be performed by APHIS-WS staff in accordance with the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual and Field Handbook and will be accepted by the County as complete and accurate "assessed damage".
 - ii. Compensation prices will be developed by APHIS-WS using information from UW Extension and/or local marketplace data and proposed to the County for approval, each year. Such prices will be established according to procedures set forth in the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual. Such

prices will be applied to all individuals with eligible wildlife damage to those crops throughout the County.

- iii. Public complaints (abatement compliance, fraud, etc.) must be written and received by APHIS-WS by December 31st, to be given consideration in the wildlife damage claims determination process. Hunting access denial complaints shall be written and received by APHIS-WS within 10 days of hunting access denial to be given consideration in the wildlife damage claims determination process, as described in the WDACP Technical Manual.
- iv. The County will not administer a damage appraisal and/or claim to persons not cooperating with County personnel or its agent responsible for administering the County's Wildlife Damage Abatement and Claims Program. Abusive language, behavior, threats of violence, or otherwise will be considered a failure on the part of the enrollee to cooperate. This condition of administration will be provided by the county or its agent, in writing to program enrollees.
- v. As required by s. NR 12.37(4)(a) 4.b., Wis. Adm. Code as part of the claims approval process, if an enrollee who has been issued a shooting permit is found not to be compliant with the harvest objective prescribed under his/her permit under s. NR 12.163(2)(a), Wisc. Adm. Code, then the County, its agent, and the department shall consult before making a collective recommendation to grant an exemption to the harvest objective requirement. This group shall review the evidence if there is consensus that an exemption is warranted, they shall recommend that the County designated committee charged with the approval of such damage claims, grant approval of the damage claim for the year in which the permit was issued. Compelling evidence that shall be used is detailed in s. NR 12.163(2)(b)2., Wis. Adm. Code.
- 10. Charges: The terms of this Agreement may be changed by written amendment approved by all Parties.
- 11. Termination:
 - a. The County may terminate participation in the WDACP upon notifying WDNR in writing thirty (30) days prior to termination.
 - b. WDNR shall terminate a County Plan of Administration if the County does not comply with all conditions of s. 29.889, Stats., s. NR 12, Wis. Adm. Code, this Plan of Administration, the Wisconsin WDACP Technical Manual, or fails to properly report costs of the program or claims.
 - c. WDNR agrees to reimburse the County for WDACP costs incurred and determined proper by DNR under this Plan of Administration prior to the effective date of termination.

- d. That upon termination of the Agreement, the County shall reimburse APHIS-WS for all County WDACP obligations created by APHIS-WS as a result of this Agreement and not previously reimbursed, to the limits of the County WDACP budget.
- e. In the even that the County chooses to exercise its right to overrule APHIS-WS on a particular case under the general policy provision, APHIS-WS reserves the right to withdraw administrative and/or fiscal support of that case. Either action may occur without termination of this Agreement.
- 12. Length of Effect: This Plan shall remain in effect until December 31, 2028, unless otherwise changed or terminated as described in Article 12 and sections 10 and 11.

ATTACHMENT C FINANCIAL PLAN

Annual Budgets will be completed by APHIS-WS representative, approved by all Parties, and signed by County, WDNR, and APHIS-WS representatives.

Financial Point of Contact/Billing Address:

County representative Name, Address, Phone Number, Email <u>APHIS-WS State Office Name, Address, Phone</u> Number, Email

Todd Morris County Conservationist 571 County Rd. A Green Lake, WI 54941 920-294-4051 TMorris@greenlakecountywi.gov Tina Stott, Budget Analyst USDA, APHIS, WS 732 Lois Drive Sun Prairie, WI 53590 608-478-3742 Tina.stott@usda.gov

SECTION IV: COUNTY BUDGET/ FINANCIAL PLAN - REQUIRED BY ALL PARTIES GREEN LAKE COUNTY (COOPERATOR)

2024

COST ELEMENT	Price charged to Cooperator (Payable to APHIS WS)	Additional WDNR Funding Requested by Cooperator (county Reimbursed Directly from WDNR)	COST SHARED BY WS	FULL COST
Salaries				
(includes venison donation admin)	\$16,421.07		\$3,127.82	\$19,548.89
Abatement Materials	\$1,320.34			\$1,320.34
Mileage/Travel/Services	\$2,234.92			\$2,234.92
Subtotal Direct Costs	\$19,976.33		\$3,127.82	\$23,104.15
Pooled Job Costs	\$2,197.40			\$2,197.40
Deer Donation Processing		\$0.00		\$0.00
County Administration		\$500.00		\$500.00
Indirect Costs (Administrative Overhead)	\$3,226.18			\$3,226.18
Permanent Fence		\$0.00		\$0.00
Agreement Total	\$25,399.90	\$500.00	\$3,127.82	\$29,027.72
The distribution of the budget (with the exception of the mandatory percentage line items) from this Financial Plan may vary as necessary to accomplish the purpose of this agreement, but may not exceed:		99.90		\$29,027.72

We expect to assist 15-25 growers with damage that may result in wildlife damage requests equaling or exceeding \$15,000 worth of claims.

COUNTY:

WDNR: _____

Date:			

Date: _____

Date: _____

USDA-APHIS-WS: _____

20 7255 0044 RA

Page 2 of 2 (DNR)

AP.RA.RX55.72.2110

GREEN LAKE COUNTY (COOPERATOR)

2024

COST ELEMENT	County Request	*County Administration included in County Salary request	USDA-WS FUNDING APPROVED	TOTAL FUNDING APPROVED
Salaries (includes County Admin.)	\$16,921.07	\$500.00	\$3,127.82	\$20,048.89
Abatement Materials	\$1,320.34			\$1,320.34
Mileage/Travel/Services	\$4,432.31			\$4,432.31
Office Overhead	\$3,226.18			\$3,226.18
Venison Admin	\$0.00			\$0.00
Venison Processing	\$0.00			\$0.00
				\$0.00
Permanent Fence	\$0.00			\$0.00
Agreement Total	\$25,899.90		\$3,127.82	
WDNR FUNDING APPROVED: The distribution of the budget (with the exception of the mandatory percentage line items) from this Financial Plan may vary as necessary to accomplish the purpose of this agreement, but may not exceed:	\$25,8	99.90		\$29,027.72

We expect to assist 15-25 growers with damage that may result in wildlife damage requests equaling or exceeding \$15,000 worth of claims.

Signatures of Intention:

COUNTY:	Date:
WDNR:	Date:
USDA-APHIS-WS:	Date:



Wisconsin Deer Donation 2024

County Agreement to Participate

County agrees to participate in the WDACP venison donation program in 2024 and to administer the program as set forth in the Wisconsin Deer Donation County Information Packet. The WDNR WDACP agrees to fully reimburse the county for all administrative and venison processing costs associated with the deer donation program.

Signed:	Date:		
Title:			

State of Wisconsin

Department of Natural Resources

For the Secretary

Signed: _____ Date: _____

Director, Bureau of Wildlife Management